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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me first

          3  apologize to my colleagues and our audience.

          4  Unfortunately, I got caught in this situation where

          5  the BQE was knocked out this morning, so I apologize

          6  for the fact that this hearing is starting late.

          7                 I welcome my colleagues Bill Perkins

          8  and Annabel Palma. I know we're going to be joined

          9  in just a moment by our Public Advocate Betsy

         10  Gotbaum, who will have an opening statement, as

         11  well.

         12                 I was going to do a powerpoint, but

         13  I'm going to forego that because of the lateness and

         14  just summarize a few key points.

         15                 I welcome Commissioner Gibbs and

         16  Commissioner Mattingly this morning. We'll hear

         17  their testimony in just a moment.

         18                 But I just want to remind everyone of

         19  how we came to this point, and I think, I should say

         20  at the outset I think this is going to be one of our

         21  more gratifying hearings, because I think some real

         22  progress has occurred in the last few months and

         23  we'll hear about that from the Commissioners.

         24                 And I want to thank them for working

         25  very closely with this Committee in a very open
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          2  spirit. We've learned a lot about what they're

          3  trying to do. I think they've listened to Committee

          4  members who had ideas about ways we could work

          5  together and some improvements the City could make

          6  and I think it's all resulted in a very good

          7  outcome, and we'll hear about the details of that

          8  and we certainly want to understand the details

          9  better.

         10                 But I just want to take us back a

         11  step. We met in June and reviewed the situation of

         12  how we dealt with children in our shelters, and

         13  that, of course, was inspired by a tragedy, as is so

         14  often the case. And someday I hope that won't be the

         15  case, but specifically the death of Colesvinton

         16  Florestal, who died at the age of three months in a

         17  shelter.

         18                 That case led us all to question how

         19  well the different agencies that work with kids in

         20  shelters were coordinating, how well information was

         21  flowing.

         22                 As I think everyone knows, this

         23  Committee tries not to sensationalize, but tries to

         24  get to the heart of the matter, and what we can do

         25  specifically to improve matters. And I think this
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          2  particular tragedy led us all to want to understand

          3  better what were the barriers to the kind of

          4  communication and coordination and the kind of quick

          5  action that might catch a problem before it started

          6  to get to the kind of point that could lead to a

          7  tragedy.

          8                 At that time, too, we heard ideas

          9  from our Public Advocate, who has just joined us,

         10  Betsy Gotbaum, about certain steps we could take to

         11  provide better information to shelter residents and

         12  employees, and we'll hear from her in just a minute.

         13                 The fact is that the situation of our

         14  shelters, the number of people going into our

         15  shelters has increased markedly in recent years.

         16  Interestingly enough, there has almost been an exact

         17  correlation. I'm not saying it's literally a

         18  one-for-one situation, but as two different trends,

         19  there's been a very clear parallel between the

         20  decrease in the number of kids in foster care, which

         21  is a wonderful thing, and a rapid increase in the

         22  number of kids in shelters, and, again, for very

         23  different reasons, but it means that more and more

         24  of our attention I think legitimately has to go to

         25  how to help kids in shelters.
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          2                 And specifically one of the things

          3  that came up so clearly in the hearing in June, that

          4  really a disproportionate number of the kids who we

          5  did lose in the Year 2003 to child abuse, we lost in

          6  shelters, specifically seven out of 24, and then a

          7  number of the families for whom a child was lost had

          8  spent time in shelters either at the time of the

          9  child's death or in previous years.

         10                 So, it became clear to us that this

         11  was a particular nexus that needed attention, and I

         12  know ACS had been doing its own reviews to make

         13  sense of the situation, and the special master panel

         14  had as well, and so I think a lot of different

         15  efforts were running at the same time to try and

         16  figure out how to deal with this particular focal

         17  point.

         18                 And specifically, and I give ACS

         19  credit for identifying some of its own challenges,

         20  and looking at the fact that the shelter-based

         21  situation required greater coordination between

         22  agencies and a greater focus on the specific type of

         23  services that families needed that were in shelters

         24  and facing a wide variety of challenges, and then

         25  fortunately that could be a breeding ground for
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          2  further problems, such as child abuse.

          3                 Commissioner Mattingly, since our

          4  hearing in June, has outlined a number of steps,

          5  some in July and some more recently, that he is

          6  taking. And, again, I commend him for starting in a

          7  very aggressive manner in his new tenure, and we

          8  welcome that and we appreciate that.

          9                 And in fact, we saw that in the first

         10  months of 2004 we're facing a lot of challenges, not

         11  just in shelters but beyond.

         12                 And, so, I think it's fair to say

         13  that everyone is focused on this problem. And

         14  tragically, you know, just a few weeks ago another

         15  young child died in a shelter situation. We're going

         16  to ask today for any sense from the Commissioners of

         17  what we've learned from these recent incidents. We

         18  understand that any incident takes quite a while to

         19  investigate, but we're going to certainly ask for

         20  any conclusions or any information we can draw from

         21  that. Again, not to sensationalize, but to help us

         22  get to decisions.

         23                 I think in July ACS and DHS took

         24  important steps forward, in terms of the way they're

         25  going to screen applicants for shelter, and the kind
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          2  of information that they're going to provide, the

          3  kind of training they're going to provide to staff.

          4                 I think yesterday's announcement by

          5  the Administration was a giant leap forward, and I

          6  appreciate it very much, establishing family service

          7  teams in the shelters, and screening families not

          8  just for current ACS cases but quote/unquote close

          9  ACS cases. Again, that's something that came out in

         10  our June hearing, that so many other problems

         11  occurred where a case was officially closed, but

         12  where clearly the problems had not ended.

         13                 And then, again, we're going to hear

         14  from Betsy in a moment, in terms of her legislation

         15  which goes farther to provide information.

         16                 The bottom line here, and I think

         17  everyone in this room shares it, our number one

         18  obligation as public servants is to protect the most

         19  vulnerable children, particularly children in

         20  shelters, any children who might face child abuse

         21  are certainly amongst the very most vulnerable, and

         22  the key here is to all work together.

         23                 I believe we have the resources and

         24  we have the brain power, and in fact, when children

         25  are in a venue where the City has the ability to
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          2  monitor the situation an act, that in many ways that

          3  gives us a greater chance to prevent problems and to

          4  come up with solutions. And I think, again, the

          5  Administration has really embraced that and is

          6  trying to take full advantage of the opportunity

          7  that they have, such direct contact with these

          8  families. And we certainly want to understand better

          9  today how that will be implemented, how quickly and

         10  how well that will be implemented and where do we go

         11  from here.

         12                 Before we turn to the Commissioners,

         13  I'd like to welcome our Public Advocate Betsy

         14  Gotbaum, thank her again for introducing what I

         15  think is very important and helpful legislation, and

         16  we welcome your comments.

         17                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman.

         19                 One of the main issues I focused on

         20  as Public Advocate is the welfare of children in

         21  City homeless shelters.

         22                 We have, in my office, the solemn

         23  responsibility of analyzing fatalities among

         24  children known to ACS and that's in the Charter.

         25                 In fulfilling this responsibility, I
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          2  have identified and highlighted the failure of City

          3  agencies to protect the lives of these children.

          4                 Since the beginning of my term, I've

          5  expressed concern over the lack of coordination

          6  between the City agencies that deal with these

          7  children.

          8                 In June 2004, I issued a report on

          9  shelter deaths which identified the lack of

         10  coordination, as a significant factor in several

         11  child fatalities.

         12                 I also identified the problem in two

         13  earlier annual reports on child fatalities. My

         14  recommendations for improvements were ignored by the

         15  Administration and ACS. And I have to state,

         16  Commissioner, as a former Commissioner, and having

         17  worked in several administrations, when an elected

         18  official, especially a Citywide elected official,

         19  writes a letter to a Commissioner, not only

         20  congratulating him on his new appointment but asking

         21  for a meeting and requesting some answers to some

         22  questions that have never been answered and not to

         23  get a response, frankly, I'm quite shocked by that.

         24                 So, instead they, your

         25  Administration, cover up facts by casting doubt on
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          2  the number of children who died in the previous

          3  year.

          4                 Numbers are not important when the

          5  City is not doing all it can to prevent children

          6  from dying.

          7                 I found that the grossest negligence

          8  occurred because of the lack of communication

          9  between ACS and DHS. In one case DHS did not inform

         10  ACS that a mother and child who were victims of

         11  domestic violence had left the shelter, they

         12  returned to live with the abuser, and the child

         13  died.

         14                 Nine children under the watch of DHS

         15  and ACS died that year. Thirty-three had died since

         16  2000. But it wasn't until Colesvinton Florestal

         17  landed on the front pages of the newspapers that the

         18  agencies reacted.

         19                 On July 30th, they announced that

         20  they would begin to work together, and last month

         21  Commissioner Mattingly announced that all measures

         22  for collaboration had been implemented. But since

         23  this pronouncement, 18-month-old Zaire Anderson died

         24  in a Brownsville, Brooklyn shelter.

         25                 While it is unclear whether DHS or
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          2  ACS could have prevented the death, what is clear is

          3  that there was not collaboration as promised.

          4                 Shelter providers across the City

          5  have told us, as recently as last week, that DHS and

          6  ACS are still not giving them needed information

          7  about parents expected of abusing their children,

          8  even when they contact the agencies and ask for it

          9  directly.

         10                 We know what happens when providers

         11  are left in the dark. In the case of Colesvinton

         12  Florestal, shelter providers didn't know her family

         13  had been investigated nine times by ACS for child

         14  abuse.

         15                 How many more Colesvinton Florestal

         16  and Zaire Andersons will we read about before ACS

         17  and DHS actually do what they have promised?

         18                 Late yesterday the Administration

         19  released their plans to give shelter providers

         20  information about more of the children in their

         21  care, children who either have open or closed cases.

         22  Hopefully they will follow through better than they

         23  have before.

         24                 Unfortunately, I have come to expect

         25  not a lot more than self-denial and half-hearted
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          2  attempts to reform in this Administration, and I

          3  will continue to monitor every failure to protect

          4  our children on the part of ACS, DHS and every other

          5  City agency, and I will also continue to do

          6  everything I can to improve our ability to protect

          7  children.

          8                 Today there will be a discussion of

          9  the bill that I have introduced into the City

         10  Council to help protect children.

         11                 Thank you, Chairman DeBlasio, for

         12  giving me the amount of attention that it deserves.

         13                 My bill will force shelters to do a

         14  better job reporting suspected abuse, and will

         15  provide parents and shelter staff with life-saving

         16  information. It is a first step.

         17                 I certainly hope that ACS and DHS

         18  will also start to cooperate with the Office of the

         19  Public Advocate.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         22  Public Advocate.

         23                 I would like to welcome Commissioner

         24  Gibbs, Commissioner Mattingly. Come forward and give

         25  your testimony. We'll just move the powerpoint
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          2  apparatus out of your way.

          3                 Thank you, both, for joining us

          4  again. I apologize for the delay this morning, and

          5  we welcome your testimony. Whoever would like to

          6  start.

          7                 Commissioner Mattingly, state your

          8  name for the record.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Good morning,

         10  Chiar DeBlasio and members of the General Welfare

         11  Committee. I'm John Mattingly, the Commissioner of

         12  the Administration for Children's Services.

         13                 Today I'd like to provide updated

         14  information on the status of the collaboration

         15  between Children Services and the Department of

         16  Homeless Services toward our common goal of

         17  improving communication, data sharing and protecting

         18  children in the shelter care system while providing

         19  the best possible service to the clients that we

         20  share. And Commissioner Gibbs will follow my

         21  presentation with her own.

         22                 As you all know, on June 30, 2004,

         23  ACS spoke to this Committee about preliminary steps

         24  our agency was taking to address system shortcomings

         25  and to work more collaboratively with DHS.

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 Since that time, we have continued to

          3  work with DHS and have made significant progress

          4  toward information sharing, and other approaches to

          5  helping families seeking shelter, who were also

          6  known to the child protection system.

          7                 I've been here just about eight weeks

          8  now. There's much I don't know about these systems

          9  but I do know that they are two very large and

         10  complicated organizations and we share thousands of

         11  families who are at risk and in need of support and

         12  help. And from the outside at least, or early in my

         13  term, it seems to me that the work that has been

         14  done up to now has been quite remarkable, in terms

         15  of building this collaboration.

         16                 A joint task force consisting of high

         17  level employees from both Children's Services and

         18  DHS was convened in June 2004 and has now been

         19  meeting regularly.

         20                 The task force has been working on

         21  how best to share information that is pertinent to

         22  helping families, while protecting their children.

         23                 It's also taken, I think,

         24  considerable steps, toward educating both the

         25  clients of homeless services and the staff who serve
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          2  them.

          3                 Education of DHS clients began in

          4  earnest in July when Children Services provided

          5  materials to DHS for use at their site.

          6                 100 copies of our child safety video

          7  entitled"A Life to Love: Preventing Accidental

          8  Injuries To Our Most Precious Resource" in English,

          9  and 100 copies each in Spanish, Creole, Chinese,

         10  Arabic and Russian, were provided.

         11                 This video, created and produced by

         12  ACS, addresses safety issues, such as Shaken Baby

         13  Syndrome, losing children to water in the tub or

         14  elsewhere, protection from falling from windows and

         15  automobile safety, as well as proper safe sleep

         16  positions for infants.

         17                 Additionally, ACS provided to DHS

         18  20,000 copies of our child safety brochure in

         19  English, and 5,000 copies each in other languages,

         20  and over 10,000 copies of the handbook for healthy

         21  development of children and youth.

         22                 One of the most important

         23  accomplishments of the joint task force has been to

         24  increase the degree of coordination and

         25  communication between our two agencies.
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          2                 As we testified in June for several

          3  years, there has been an ACS Child Protective

          4  Specialist out stationed at the Emergency Assistance

          5  Unit available to provide support to DHS intake

          6  workers when a child welfare issue has arisen.

          7                 Children services and DHS have long

          8  had protocols in place to respond to families in the

          9  shelter system when currently open ACS cases were

         10  identified, or cases that present immediate safety

         11  risk, to call for a State Central Registry report.

         12                 Now, in order to further enhance the

         13  services provided to families approaching the EAU

         14  for housing services, and to protect their children,

         15  Children Services has expanded the role of our child

         16  protective staff, as well as the information that is

         17  shared between agencies.

         18                 ACS has provided DHS's EAU intake

         19  staff access to our Resource Directory Information

         20  Tool called "RDIT," that's a database, which

         21  contains information on active ACS cases open for

         22  foster care or preventive services.

         23                 The EAU intake staff are utilizing

         24  RDIT now, at the application stage to conduct

         25  universal screening on all family shelter applicants
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          2  at the EAU to determine if the family is also

          3  receiving preventive foster care services from ACS.

          4                 During August, Children Services

          5  provided two-hour training sessions on accessing and

          6  using the RDIT system to DHS staff, including

          7  distribution of a 20-page users guide, tailored to

          8  their practice.

          9                 Several of these DHS staff received

         10  an additional hour of training to enable them to

         11  serve as super users and trainers on RDIT in the

         12  future.

         13                 Now, in situations where a family is

         14  found to have an open ACS case, EAU intake staff now

         15  forward a referral to the Child Protective Services

         16  specialist on site for additional clearances through

         17  our ACS database.

         18                 Information that a family with an

         19  active ACS case has an open DHS application is then

         20  transmitted to the ACS case manager responsible for

         21  oversight for the family's case.

         22                 As a result, Children's Services or

         23  contract agency planners have an improved ability to

         24  share information and be in regular contact with

         25  families residing in temporary shelter, and with
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          2  their assigned homeless services workers, thus

          3  enabling, we hope, services to be provided in a more

          4  comprehensive and specific manner.

          5                 In this way we will help, we believe,

          6  to ensure that services to families are not

          7  disrupted by moves within the shelter system, and

          8  that all social service providers are aware of each

          9  other and maintain consistent contact with family.

         10                 Because the focus of the RDIT system

         11  is tracking, is the tracking of cases open for

         12  preventive or foster care services, access to this

         13  system would not allow, however, either Children

         14  Services or DHS staff to learn if a family seeking

         15  shelter services was also the subject of an open

         16  child protective investigation.

         17                 In order to be aware of these cases

         18  under investigation, as well, Children Services

         19  intends in the very near future to take over the

         20  function of conducting clearances on shelter

         21  applicants all together.

         22                 ACS staff will clear shelter

         23  applicants against both the RDIT and the ACS

         24  connection system, which is the computer system that

         25  contains information concerning CPS investigation.
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          2                 As an additional safeguard, ACS and

          3  DHS have also begun running regular biweekly

          4  computer data matches between the DHS client

          5  tracking system and the ACS connection system.

          6                 Current plans call for a match every

          7  two weeks of active DHS cases against persons in

          8  open CPS investigations using the ACS connections

          9  data store.

         10                 In addition, every four weeks we plan

         11  a second match of active DHS cases against persons

         12  in CPS investigations indicated and closed during

         13  the previous ten years.

         14                 Another way that Children Services

         15  and DHS have increased cooperation is with expanded

         16  training on issues related to their status as

         17  mandated reporters of suspected child abuse and

         18  maltreatment.

         19                 The curriculum for the mandated

         20  reporter training includes an overview of ACS's

         21  mission and organization, the role of mandated

         22  reporters, the reporting process, indicators of

         23  abuse and neglect and discussion of case study.

         24                 Since August 25th, Children Services

         25  has provided more than ten training sessions to
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          2  social services staff persons that are assigned to

          3  the DHS hotels, scatter site housing and Tier II

          4  shelters.

          5                 Training is scheduled to continue

          6  into 2005 and will be extended to include clients of

          7  DHS on a range of topics, including child safety,

          8  family teen conferencing, parenting, anger

          9  management, conflict resolution, independent living

         10  and building self esteem.

         11                 Finally, ACS continues to provide

         12  training to individual private shelters that

         13  contract with DHS.

         14                 Recognizing that homelessness is,

         15  however, inherently a cause of increased stress on a

         16  family unit, and that families that have a child

         17  welfare history may have additional needs apart from

         18  homelessness, the ACS DHS Joint Task Force has

         19  embarked on an effort to develop a family services

         20  team.

         21                 ACS staff will be on-site to screen

         22  for closed indicated cases entering the DHS system.

         23  And as necessary will follow through with services

         24  or with other action, as may be required.

         25                 We envision this new program as a
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          2  service for families with multi service needs and a

          3  mechanism to provide quality child welfare

          4  assessments when necessary.

          5                 The availability of the program

          6  within the Department of Homeless Services shelter

          7  intake system will expedite the assessment and

          8  identification of families in need, and will create

          9  more immediate attention to those needs by qualified

         10  social work staff who are part of and have linkages

         11  to a network of child and family services.

         12                 This team will help ensure

         13  coordination between the two agencies for shared

         14  referrals and casework.

         15                 The family services team will use

         16  information on a family's closed indicated cases

         17  within the last ten years, if any, as part of an

         18  assessment of child welfare service needs and to

         19  determine if further contact or follow-up with the

         20  family is warranted.

         21                 Where children services identify the

         22  family with a closed case, and for which current

         23  circumstances suggest the need for more contact with

         24  the family, we will join the DHS family services

         25  teams and may participate in an eligibility
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          2  assessment conference, which is a mid-point case

          3  conference targeted for the fifth or sixth day after

          4  the shelter application and is conducted by DHS

          5  staff.

          6                 As Commissioner Gibbs will explain in

          7  more detail, and as you might know, DHS is currently

          8  implementing reforms to shelter intake and

          9  eligibility process. As part of that new process,

         10  families applying for housing services will benefit

         11  from an assessment for child and family service

         12  needs, as well as appropriate referrals and linkages

         13  for services.

         14                 Some families will ultimately be

         15  deemed ineligible for shelter services but will

         16  receive assistance to help them prepare for the

         17  transition back to their home and community.

         18                 At that time an assessment of social

         19  service needs and referrals to community resources

         20  would occur.

         21                 Consistent with the idea of full

         22  partnership between DHS and Children Services, the

         23  family support team would assist with assessment and

         24  linkages to community resources.

         25                 Families who are deemed eligible and
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          2  are placed in or who are already living in a shelter

          3  receive services from shelter staff, including the

          4  development and implementation of an independent

          5  living plan.

          6                 We also envision that the family

          7  services team, including ACS staff, will assist this

          8  group by providing preventive resources in close

          9  proximity to the shelters where they will be

         10  temporarily placed, and by giving priority for DHS

         11  shelter residents in our preventive services slots.

         12                 I hope that it has become clear

         13  through today's testimony and the concrete measures

         14  taken by Children Services and DHS have been

         15  consistent and enthusiastic partners in an effort to

         16  avoid further tragedy and enhance services to all

         17  families.

         18                 This ongoing assessment and

         19  collaboration has given us a fresh perspective on

         20  ways to work together toward family service and

         21  child safety.

         22                 I also want to thank Chair DeBlasio

         23  and the Committee for your constructive concern in

         24  this area, and hope that we can work together in the

         25  future to better meet the needs of children and
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          2  family.

          3                 Commissioner Gibbs will give the next

          4  testimony and then will be available for questions

          5  and discussion.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Thank you, John.

          7                 Good morning, Chairman DeBlasio,

          8  members of the General Welfare Committee, Public

          9  Advocate Gotbaum. I am Linda Gibbs, Commissioner of

         10  the Department of Homeless Services. Thank you for

         11  this opportunity to discuss an issue which we all

         12  understand to be of highest importance, the health

         13  and wellbeing of our City's children, in this case,

         14  those children residing in the municipal shelter

         15  system.

         16                 As detailed by Commissioner

         17  Mattingly, DHS and the Administration for Children's

         18  Services have made significant changes in the way we

         19  work to support families at the intake center where

         20  families apply for shelter and in shelter facilities

         21  themselves.

         22                 As you recall, after the tragic death

         23  of a three-month-old infant in a Harlem shelter

         24  facility last May, Mayor Bloomberg asked DHS and ACS

         25  to review the facts of the case, to identify
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          2  opportunities to increase communication and

          3  coordination around homeless families with child

          4  welfare involvement.

          5                 The task force that was established

          6  at that time has met regularly and intensely to

          7  identify and implement a series of new initiatives.

          8                 John summarized those and so I won't

          9  repeat them, but they do include data checks,

         10  routine training on mandated reporter

         11  responsibilities, child welfare staff protocols for

         12  homeless children, transferring information from the

         13  intake center to the shelters, distributing the

         14  videos and the brochures that John mentioned and

         15  conducting the routine data matches between our

         16  agencies to determine which families in the shelter

         17  system have a current child welfare involvement.

         18                 Through these initiatives, DHS today

         19  has more information than ever about the child

         20  welfare needs of our clients.

         21                 ACS has more access than ever to

         22  protect the health and well being of homeless

         23  children, and most importantly, our families have

         24  more access than ever to supports and services.

         25                 Let me offer one example. The
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          2  training which were initiated for front-line shelter

          3  staff in July are being attended by all social

          4  service staff and others with direct client contact

          5  in our family shelters.

          6                 Facilitated by ACS staff at their

          7  Manhattan and Queens offices, the trainings are

          8  covering the definitions of abuse and neglect,

          9  characteristics of victims and abusers, indicators

         10  of abuse and neglect and the role and associated

         11  protocols of mandated reporters.

         12                 Over 415 shelter staff have already

         13  been trained. Additional staff are scheduled to be

         14  trained and will repeat these trainings quarterly.

         15                 Another example is the aggressive

         16  effort underway to distribute literature and safety

         17  videos throughout the family shelter system.

         18                 These materials created by ACS and

         19  available in numerous languages, emphasize a number

         20  of health and safety tips for parents, including

         21  important reminders about the dangers of sleeping

         22  with infants.

         23                 Roughly 20,000 brochures and hundreds

         24  of videos have been made available to the family

         25  shelter system.
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          2                 We are today pleased to inform you

          3  that at your urging, Chair DeBlasio, we took a

          4  careful look at our shared policies for assessing

          5  the needs of families who have histories with the

          6  child welfare system, and we are introducing the new

          7  ACS family services team, which will be an integral

          8  part of our shelter intake and application process.

          9                 As we expand our ability to identify

         10  families at risk, we will provide support and

         11  resources to them as they apply for and receive

         12  shelter services.

         13                 As you're aware, we are currently

         14  working to restructure the intake process for

         15  families seeking shelter.

         16                 We have taken this opportunity to

         17  fully integrate ACS and the wealth of expertise it

         18  brings into this process.

         19                 From the moment of application to

         20  shelter to the referral of a family either to

         21  shelter or back to the community, the family

         22  services team will be involved in helping the family

         23  succeed.

         24                 These changes are consistent with and

         25  complimentary to the recommendations made by our
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          2  court-appointed panel to improve and reform the

          3  family shelter intake and eligibility determination

          4  process.

          5                 And here I would like to acknowledge

          6  Commissioner Mattingly being new to the job and new

          7  in the City having taken on this issue very quickly

          8  and working with his staff and together with us,

          9  developed a very positive and creative strategy for

         10  addressing this issue and in the range of things

         11  that he has to figure out at the Administration for

         12  Children's Services, we have really benefitted from

         13  his attention to this issue.

         14                 In addition to these particular

         15  efforts, the Department of Homeless Services played

         16  an integral role in the Mayor's One City Strategy,

         17  participating in interagency case conferences, data

         18  matches and meetings to identify and address

         19  unintentional bureaucratic barriers, to coordinate

         20  the delivery of assistance, maximize the

         21  effectiveness of the City's resources, and promote

         22  client self-sufficiency and responsibility.

         23                 Eleven city agencies have agreed to

         24  further this commitment, and are in the process of

         25  developing the Neighborhood Integration Project, a
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          2  community-based interagency case management and

          3  service coordination program for residents receiving

          4  services from multiple agencies.

          5                 This collaborative effort aims to

          6  increase economic self-sufficiency, expand access to

          7  health care, reduce homelessness, reduce child abuse

          8  and neglect and recidivism to jail or prison among

          9  other critical outcomes.

         10                 To close, increasing coordination and

         11  communication between public agencies has been and

         12  continues to be a priority for this Department, for

         13  this Administration, which is why interagency

         14  collaboration is a centerpiece of the Mayor's

         15  five-year action plan to end chronic homelessness.

         16                 Even more important is the fact that

         17  homelessness represents a time of abundant stress

         18  and disruption for parents and children alike, which

         19  is why coordinated efforts between ACS and DHS are

         20  imperative.

         21                 I am pleased to have as my partner,

         22  my colleague John Mattingly, who shares our deep

         23  commitment to supporting homeless families and

         24  protecting homeless children.

         25                 I would also like to add here that
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          2  the Intro. 408 that's being introduced today, is a

          3  piece of legislation that we intend very much to

          4  support. We think it is a good action, one that we

          5  would like to work with you. There are certain

          6  details that we need to discuss, but overall we see

          7  this as an additional positive step for the safety

          8  of children in shelters.

          9                 Again, I thank the General Welfare

         10  Committee for creating an environment of thoughtful

         11  assessment that has supported the progress of our

         12  agency's core practice.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you, both

         15  Commissioners.

         16                 Before I ask a few questions, I know

         17  my colleagues have a number of questions, as well.

         18                 I'd like to welcome Council Members

         19  Gale Brewer and Christine Quinn, both of our

         20  Committee.

         21                 I want to begin at the end, which is

         22  yesterday's announcement, and I know we have

         23  questions about the announcement made in July as

         24  well, and other features of this issue, but let me

         25  begin with what was announced yesterday. And, again,
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          2  I couldn't be more pleased with the spirit of it and

          3  the outline of it, and I think a lot of what we were

          4  talking about back in the June hearing has been

          5  reflected in what you have put together, and we

          6  appreciate that very much.

          7                 Let me ask how this will work in

          8  practice and get a better sense of this. First of

          9  all, in terms of the teams from ACS that will be at

         10  the EAU, how large will the teams be, how senior

         11  will the members be or who will be the most senior

         12  member of the team? Will they come into immediate

         13  contact with each applicant within the close, you

         14  know, close proximity to when they arrive, can you

         15  flush that out a little?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Briefly,

         17  sure.

         18                 We will build the ACS presence at the

         19  intake into the shelter care system step by step as

         20  we go along.

         21                 We have four ACS workers currently at

         22  the EAU, and they are experienced staff. The new

         23  staff who are brought on board as we build this will

         24  also be experienced staff and we'll have full time

         25  supervision available for them.
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          2                 It is quite possible, looking at the

          3  numbers in a preliminary fashion that we will need

          4  12 workers on site just to handle the intake as it

          5  comes in.

          6                 At the initial screening which DHS

          7  does, we will immediately conduct a connection

          8  review so that we can find out if we have not only

          9  open cases but closed indicated cases and at that

         10  point, each of these experienced workers will be

         11  expected to look in-depth into the information that

         12  we have, and make a determination about how we

         13  should go forward.

         14                 There will be a broad range of these

         15  cases I'm quite sure, everything from a family that

         16  has a closed case because they became AWOL and we

         17  haven't seen them for some time, all the way down to

         18  a case of ten years ago in which we believe there is

         19  no current danger involved in the situation, there

         20  are no young children, et cetera. Within a broad

         21  range is what we expect to find.

         22                 Now, we will take immediate action on

         23  those cases that obviously call for immediate

         24  response, and we will work with DHS staff for those

         25  majority of cases which we expect will require
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          2  careful attention and additional help provided to

          3  the family.

          4                 So, that's basically how we expect it

          5  to happen.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me go in a

          7  little bit more depth here.

          8                 First, the most senior person who

          9  will be on site, when this all comes to fruition,

         10  who will be the most senior person on site from ACS?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: A supervisor.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And that means?

         13  I'm trying to get a sense of that in the scheme of

         14  things, that means someone higher than the

         15  caseworker? How they relate to -- like, for example,

         16  compared to an Assistant Commissioner or a Bureau

         17  Chief, what is a supervisor?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, a

         19  Supervisor II, along with probably a Supervisor I,

         20  will be on site, and they will be supervised by a

         21  CPM, which is a first level manager. The same way

         22  that a unit of caseworkers would be supervised

         23  anywhere within the Protective Services Division.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: How, for

         25  example, let me imagine for a moment either a
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          2  difference of opinion or a misunderstanding between

          3  the DHS folks who run the facility and the

          4  supervisor from ACS. And, again, I think this is why

          5  we were making such a big point of this back in

          6  June, that someone who has some weight in the

          7  structure who can really force the hand of the

          8  bureaucracy, if you will, when they see a problem

          9  that might affect the child.

         10                 So, the ACS supervisor thinks there's

         11  something that needs immediate attention, and the

         12  DHS, the person from DHS who is dealing with the

         13  case doesn't, how do you resolve that?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, I think

         15  we should primarily resolve these issues together in

         16  the family team conferences, because differences

         17  occur on a broad range of possibilities, including

         18  misunderstandings, including not having enough

         19  information, et cetera. So, that's the primary way

         20  you want to go about resolving differences.

         21                 However, the CPS people have a

         22  mandated, a legally mandated responsibility, to take

         23  action in certain cases that call for that, and

         24  when, for example, we find that there is immediate

         25  risk with this family, we're going to have to take
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          2  action, hopefully with DHS's support, but in any

          3  case, we're going to have to take action.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

          5  the spirit of that, and, you know, as we talked

          6  about, and this came up very publicly in the June

          7  hearing, we're all concerned about people's rights,

          8  to say the least, and confidentiality, but the

          9  number one concern I hope, and I think pretty much

         10  everyone who has worked on these issues hopes, is

         11  protecting the child.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And what I'm

         14  fearful of is any time two agencies have to make

         15  sense of a problem, that that could lead to slow

         16  down and confusion. So what you said just now is

         17  very helpful.

         18                 If a family arrives, and caseworkers

         19  are doing the initial discussion with the family,

         20  and the ACS personnel on site feel there is an

         21  immediate threat to the child, even though we're in

         22  the walls of a City facility, if ACS feels there is

         23  an immediate threat, you're telling me that that ACS

         24  person can immediately order the child be isolated

         25  from the family; is that correct?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Basically,

          3  yes. What will happen, let's again take a case on

          4  one particular end of the scale, suppose there is an

          5  open case, an open investigation that we have not

          6  been able to close because the family disappeared,

          7  and suppose as part of that case there was extreme

          8  risk that we perceive during the course of the

          9  investigation that would cause for us to apply to

         10  the court for an emergency removal, or to take steps

         11  ourselves to remove these children. This will be the

         12  same action we take, the same decision based on the

         13  same risk assessment criteria as we would make in

         14  the community as a whole.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Commissioner

         16  Gibbs, just to follow up on that. I know this is a

         17  work-in-progress, but, again, I want to be very

         18  blunt. It's your turf, if you will, it's your

         19  building, and here are these, the personnel from ACS

         20  there, I hope everyone is going to be collegial.

         21  But, again, I think this exact example shows where

         22  ACS has to have the right trump of the situation to

         23  be able to say this is a decisive action. How are

         24  your personnel going to be trained to defer to ACS

         25  in situations like that?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: My personnel are

          3  also mandated reporters and we will never have the

          4  level of expertise that the child welfare trained

          5  employees have and we'll defer to them on that

          6  judgment. But we also have the responsibility to

          7  report those instances of concerns regarding child

          8  welfare.

          9                 So, I think we're consistent in our

         10  philosophy on that. I want to add here, because I

         11  don't want the impression to be left that we're

         12  doing this primarily to take children away from

         13  their parents. I think it's exactly the opposite,

         14  and what we're looking for are ways of ensuring that

         15  children remain safe in intact families to provide

         16  them the support that's necessary to do that, and in

         17  the instance that we don't believe that they are

         18  safe to take appropriate action to protect their

         19  safety.

         20                 I understand that your questions are

         21  really to look into this question about where there

         22  has been a prior closed case, how we're going to

         23  assure ourselves that those children are safe, this

         24  process is really being devised to make sure that we

         25  are not missing information, and that we have all
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          2  that information because the point of becoming

          3  homeless is a very traumatic experience, and this is

          4  going to add that protection. It's being done

          5  overwhelmingly in the broader philosophy also shared

          6  by our two agencies around supporting families

          7  during times of need so that they can weather that

          8  need as a family safely, and so this is the work

          9  will be to assess the individual cases as they come

         10  in to determine is this one that we need to take a

         11  closer look at, to actually interview, connect with

         12  the family, in the event it looks like a case that

         13  requires some further looking, and to provide a lot

         14  of training, sensitivity, awareness, to the DHS

         15  staff, beyond the minimal mandated reporter training

         16  that people do receive, the kind of on-site

         17  consultation service that will increase everybody's

         18  awareness and sensitivity to child welfare issues,

         19  and then to provide the right service and respond

         20  with a range of intervention, and to support

         21  families intact when that is possible.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me be very

         23  clear. I'm asking questions about the worst case

         24  scenario. We have, you know, tragically seen a few

         25  of those worst case scenarios recently. I'm sure
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          2  every single person would love to go back in time

          3  and be able to see those situations differently.

          4                 You're not going to find more of a

          5  group of civil liberitarians than on the New York

          6  City Council, so I think everyone is clearly, again,

          7  wants to safeguard people's rights but we are also

          8  talking about situations where there is clear

          9  indicators, and that's what I'm trying to get at.

         10                 You know, again, I understand there

         11  is only so much you can say about individual cases,

         12  and it's never been our intention to dwell on them.

         13  It is striking that in the Florestal case, and in

         14  the more recent case of Zaire Anderson, that both

         15  were families with closed ACS cases, and in the

         16  discussion we had in June it was clear, actually

         17  shocking that there was more of a tendency for there

         18  to be a problem with a closed case than where there

         19  was an open case, at least in terms of fatality.

         20                 And, so, I am asking about pretty

         21  much the question of the speed and the accuracy with

         22  which these teams can act on a problem, and that a

         23  child not get lost in the bureaucracy or in the

         24  transition into the shelter. So, let me just hone

         25  this a little more.
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          2                 The ultimate team will be 12 people

          3  --

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Our estimate.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Our estimate.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes. We'll

          7  build it as we see what the demand is.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, that's

          9  good to know. And that will be something we want to

         10  stay in close touch with you in terms of ensuring

         11  that we want to support you having the resources you

         12  need to do that.

         13                 Commissioner Gibbs, I know you're

         14  trying to streamline the timelines at the EAU about

         15  the time during which clients are seen, but is it

         16  fair to say these new teams will, whenever a client

         17  is being seen for the first time, the ACS teams will

         18  be on site, so it's not like ACS is here certain

         19  hours, but clients are being seen at other hours; is

         20  that a fair statement?

         21                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And the intent

         22  will be that every client as they enter will be

         23  reviewed by the ACS staff in the Connections

         24  database that has both the active cases as well as

         25  the closed cases for an assessment about whether or
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          2  not there is virtue in looking further.

          3                 In those cases where there are

          4  indicators to suggest the value of looking further,

          5  there will be ACS contacts either through

          6  consultation to the DHS workers to advise them and

          7  give guidance or where appropriate with ACS involved

          8  indirectly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Chairman,

         10  may I interject?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Please.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Just for

         13  clarification. By ACS staff are we also talking

         14  about the FST, the Family Services Team?

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Or are those

         17  two distinct?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, ACS

         19  staff are members of Family Services, Family Support

         20  Team.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Right. So,

         22  when you say ACS staff, you mean the Family Services

         23  Team, which will also include DHS staff. I'm just

         24  trying to get clear what you mean.

         25                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The family
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          2  services team is a new team of ACS staff who will be

          3  located at the family intake site, and they'll work

          4  collaboratively with all the other DHS staff that

          5  are at that site.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, I want you

          7  to give us sort of a real life time line here, and,

          8  again, had we been able to go back in time, and the

          9  Florestal family or the Anderson family came into

         10  the EAU, and now your new system were in place, and

         11  you could see there was a closed case, and obviously

         12  I think it would be fair to say in each of those

         13  cases it would be the kind of closed case, not the

         14  ten year ago example, but recent enough and severe

         15  enough that it would cause you concern, play this

         16  out, because, again, I'm deeply concerned how this

         17  will work in practice, I'm very pleased you're

         18  taking these steps, but our job is to provide

         19  oversight and we're going to be asking these

         20  questions for weeks and weeks and months and months

         21  until we are certain it's working.

         22                 Play out for me, under this new

         23  system how that would have been pursued.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Okay. A new

         25  collaboration.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The family enters

          4  the family intake site and ACS family services team

          5  will be there on the site, the eligibility review

          6  process takes ten days, families who apply for

          7  shelter are at the site on the first day, under our

          8  improved eligibility process that will be starting

          9  within the next week they will be revisiting the

         10  site halfway through that ten-day period for a

         11  touching base to provide information to do a

         12  follow-up conference, and the ACS staff and the DHS

         13  staff will be there and available at the point of

         14  that conference, and if the family is eligible for

         15  shelter, the family will stay with the non-profit

         16  provider in the shelter facility. From that point,

         17  if the family is ineligible for shelter, they will

         18  either return to community, and in this case the

         19  ongoing relationship, if it's required, will be

         20  through a referral to the community-based service

         21  provider from the family services team, or they may

         22  reapply for shelter in which case the process starts

         23  again.

         24                 And, so, that initial eligibility

         25  review process will be the time where the ACS and
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          2  the DHS workers can share information and knowledge

          3  about the case, do the consultation in order to

          4  determine is this a case where no ACS involvement is

          5  required, is this a case where some ACS involvement

          6  in the form of guidance and support is beneficial,

          7  or is this a case where direct ACS involvement in

          8  the case conference and with further follow-up in

          9  the shelter facility is required.

         10                 And, so, the staff will be working

         11  together in order to develop their communications so

         12  that effective interventions on cases can occur.

         13                 When the families, if families become

         14  eligible and remain in shelter, if it's merited for

         15  an ongoing preventive services, the referral will be

         16  to a community-based child welfare prevention

         17  program for support.

         18                 If the case is one that merits

         19  investigation and a call to the State Central

         20  Registry because of the concerns about safety, that

         21  mandated reporter call will occur and an

         22  investigation would begin.

         23                 The intent is to ensure that we use

         24  that knowledge that is available, together with the

         25  fact of the onset of homelessness, as a very
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          2  stressful circumstance for the family to make a

          3  judgment about whether added support is necessary.

          4                 In the event the family is ineligible

          5  and does not return to shelter, the additional

          6  intent here is to follow-up where appropriate to a

          7  community-based provider in the home community.

          8                 The fact that the family is no longer

          9  applying for shelter would otherwise leave them to

         10  return to the community and to their own, back to

         11  the household that they came from, and up until now

         12  in prior closed cases, there had not been an

         13  assessment and a determination whether a support

         14  referral to a community-based provider would be

         15  helpful. And this circumstance now with the

         16  assistance and guidance of the family service team,

         17  we'll be able to make that referral to a

         18  community-based provider, or, again, if the

         19  situation merits for a protective investigation.

         20                 Do you want to sort of describe the

         21  time line?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure. So, in

         23  terms of the initial screening, that should happen

         24  immediately. What "immediately" means is the process

         25  will be gone through by the people there with the
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          2  access to the computer information, and reviewing

          3  carefully what we do and don't know from that

          4  history. That's the start, from our perspective, of

          5  where we go from intake.

          6                 In the vast majority of cases I would

          7  predict, what we will be into is a family services

          8  team being built to provide additional help for

          9  families who are facing real crisis.

         10                 Child fatalities are incredibly

         11  important to learn from, and to change how you

         12  operate in extreme situations, but child fatalities

         13  shouldn't design the whole system for you, that's

         14  why we tried to lay out what I think of, it's still

         15  a building, but it is a carefully thought-out

         16  process to make sure that the majority of these

         17  families get the help they need from our knowledge

         18  about what has gone on in the past.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me ask you

         20  one more question, and I know my colleagues have a

         21  number of questions.

         22                 I agree with your last statement, I

         23  appreciate your last statement, but let me also

         24  state the obvious response, which is that there is

         25  that kind of grave danger, even if it is very much
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          2  the exception to the rule, speed is of the essence.

          3  And I'm just trying hone here to two things: When

          4  will this system be up and running? And how quickly

          5  from the moment of the first contact with the

          6  family, who quickly will a determination be made if

          7  some more radical action is needed?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The open

          9  cases system of course is already in place. The open

         10  protective cases are almost -- we're doing regular

         11  checking of the different databases and the system

         12  will be in place soon.

         13                 The closed indicated cases effort

         14  will depend on the building of the new intake

         15  process for the shelter care system.

         16                 We will be latched onto that and will

         17  be with it from the very beginning, building, as I

         18  said, the number of workers who are needed as we

         19  find out what the numbers look like.

         20                 However, we won't be going out and

         21  hiring new workers to do this. We'll be taking

         22  experienced people and putting them onto this job so

         23  that they can be fully experienced before they start

         24  -- at the time they start with this effort.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So that's the
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          2  first part. So, is it fair to say your new intake

          3  system starts in the next few weeks. Is it a true

          4  statement that your personnel will be on-site as

          5  this begins, and have access to closed cases.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's fair to

          7  say that we have to get the connections system up

          8  and running, so I don't want to tell you something I

          9  don't know quite specifically, but it's fair to say

         10  it's our intention to get this system running

         11  parallel at the time the new intake system --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And

         13  Commissioner Gibbs, just give us the latest date you

         14  think your new intake system will start?

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It's certainly

         16  going to be within the next several weeks.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And what's the

         18  latest, Commissioner Mattingly, you think your

         19  connection system will be available?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm sorry,

         21  but I don't know.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. We'd

         23  really appreciate, we'll send you a written

         24  follow-up, we'd really appreciate it.

         25                 And lastly, just the question, if you
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          2  identify a grave problem in the initial intake, how

          3  long until action can be taken?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: A grave

          5  problem? Hours. Minutes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

          7                 Before we call on other questioners,

          8  I'd like to welcome Council Member Larry Seabrook,

          9  and the first question will be from Council Member

         10  Gale Brewer.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         12  much. I have a couple of questions about the

         13  technology.

         14                 I do chair the Technology Committee

         15  so I have spent some time thinking about this, and

         16  my question is, to pick up on Council Member

         17  DeBlasio, when the teams are working together, how

         18  do the PCs or the laptops work together, in terms of

         19  technology?

         20                 How do you meld those two systems

         21  on-site? I have some knowledge about databases, I

         22  have knowledge about wireless, I have some knowledge

         23  about what goes fast and what doesn't, you know,

         24  broadband.

         25                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It may be that
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          2  you know a lot more than us.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But the thing

          4  is it's easier said than done. So, how are you

          5  melding these two so that when the two workers from

          6  the two agencies are there they can talk to each

          7  other?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The principal

          9  answer to your question is that we're going to have

         10  the ACS system on-site, as we do have one ACS system

         11  on site at the EAU.

         12                 Melding them is not the issue, it's

         13  the transfer of information from person-to-person so

         14  that we can move forward.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And will there

         16  be PCs available? How does one actually physically

         17  do it? So, there will be more to the site is the

         18  idea, more PCs on site?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Oh, yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And will

         21  people have laptops or do people need laptops to do

         22  this?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Probably not.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They don't

         25  need them.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The system is

          3  PC based, the connection system.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: All right.

          5                 And the other question is, I know

          6  that Ester Fuchs is working on the integrated human

          7  services, I'm very familiar with that project; do

          8  the contracted agencies, we're talking about

          9  prevention, we're talking about referrals, if their

         10  family is not accepted at the shelter, what's the

         11  status? Is there any increased discussion in terms

         12  of contact technology-wise with the contracted

         13  agency so that some of your practices that you're

         14  talking about can be implemented?

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Ester and Gabby

         16  Chrysler at DoITT have been working intensely and

         17  making great progress on the integrated management

         18  system. The first functionality that they have

         19  developed is around contract management, so there

         20  will be shared knowledge among the social service

         21  agencies of the contracted non-profit providers,

         22  for-profit providers, in the case that there are,

         23  and the geographic location of those, the catchment

         24  areas, the contract utilization, the service scope,

         25  the evaluation, so that first functionality of the

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  contract management system I think is fairly

          3  imminent in technology development terms.

          4                 It is not until the second or third

          5  phase that they are looking to a shared case

          6  management function where individual agencies that

          7  are having a client approach them for services can

          8  then access a system and see whether that client is

          9  receiving services from other agencies. That is

         10  several years off, and in anticipation of that, in

         11  our One City Neighborhood Integration Project we are

         12  essentially piloting a simpler form of that in order

         13  to see what are the shared information pieces that

         14  we want to have among agencies, what are the

         15  appropriate confidentiality protections that have to

         16  be built into it, and what are the standard case

         17  management structures that we shared that we would

         18  want to build into a shared case management tool.

         19                 So, this is a many, many year project

         20  and the very impressive thing is that they've gotten

         21  that first contract management piece very close to

         22  off the ground now.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. So that

         24  will help you, I assume in this project. Although,

         25  I'm still a little unclear as to how when the family
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          2  comes in you've got enough capability to be able to

          3  access what you need. You feel you do.

          4                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I think the very

          5  simple explanation on that is that we both, both of

          6  our agencies' staff will have terminals that will

          7  access them into the network database for each of

          8  our organizations.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The name and

         11  identifiers of the clients are provided at intake,

         12  and the agent, our client, our staff, looks to see

         13  their shelter history, shelter placement, while the

         14  ACS staff will look to see whether there's any child

         15  welfare history, and then a consultation among the

         16  staff will determine a joint approach toward

         17  handling the case.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Is the client

         19  writing down his or her name several times or once?

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: We will use the

         21  shared intake form that they submit when they come

         22  in.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So once.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 Then the other question is, I know

          3  you mentioned video a couple of times; who is going

          4  to watch the video where? Where are we watching this

          5  video? We're all getting the video, but where are we

          6  watching this video? Because we don't have video

          7  machines necessarily, and they don't work. And I

          8  have a room full of them. Anybody want them? I have

          9  a whole room full of them. Anybody wants them, I've

         10  got a whole room.

         11                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And, so, let me

         12  speak about how we're using it within the shelter.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: A nice big LED

         14  screen and something so people enjoy watching it. Go

         15  ahead.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: So, the video, A

         17  Life To Love is really a wonderful educational tool.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm sure it's

         19  fabulous.

         20                 Go ahead.

         21                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And it's been

         22  within the shelter system, distributed to all of the

         23  family shelters with the instruction that they have

         24  every client come and view the video, either during

         25  their biweekly case planning meeting or at
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          2  independent sessions that are run. And then in the

          3  case records for the shelters, we're asking them to

          4  notate that clients have actually seen the video.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, so this

          6  can be run on where? I'm just trying to figure it

          7  out. There's a video machine, there's a computer, or

          8  there's a CD? I'm just trying to understand how does

          9  actually one view it?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The one I got in

         11  my office, it's like, it's not a DVD. I don't know

         12  if you have DVD capacity, but it was the other one,

         13  the big one.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And it plays in

         16  any standard video machine and for a TV.

         17                 Shelters typically have community

         18  rooms that include a TV and a video player.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: One per --

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And clients

         21  typically have a TV and video player in their rooms

         22  as well.

         23                 We are showing the videos to clients

         24  in the shared space.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.
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          2                 And then just finally, I know you

          3  mentioned earlier, Linda, correctly, that you want

          4  to be clear that this isn't a situation in which

          5  children will be taken from their families, and that

          6  we want to make that clear, and I appreciate that.

          7                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Certainly not the

          8  intent, and it would occur when it is appropriate

          9  and necessary.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, my

         11  question to you is, since many of these families,

         12  and you know better than I, but I think I know also

         13  word on the street is what gets communicated. In

         14  other words, that's a very big communication

         15  mechanism, it's not the New York Times, it's the

         16  word on the street.

         17                 So, my question is, how as you

         18  implement this, are you thinking about what the word

         19  on the street will be? Is there some message that is

         20  positive, as opposed to people finding out and

         21  twisting it?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure. Yes,

         23  we've worried about this from the outset, and we're

         24  still worrying about it.

         25                 I think the key to this will be how
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          2  our staff together works to implement it so that

          3  families do not feel violated by this process, but

          4  feel like they are the focus of additional help and

          5  attention.

          6                 That's what we're working on. Without

          7  that as a key goal of this work, it would be very

          8  hard for us to say that closed indicated cases

          9  should be reviewed. What they should be reviewed for

         10  is primarily to get help.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. I just

         12  think that you should think about who takes that

         13  message. Obviously, proof is in the pudding. People

         14  see that that's what's going on, then that will be

         15  the word on the street. But you might think about

         16  the message.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         19  Council member.

         20                 Next questions are from Council

         21  Member Bill Perkins.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you for

         23  jumping me up on the line, I appreciate it because I

         24  have to run.

         25                 But I first want to just recognize
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          2  that we're here today because the young man, the

          3  child Colesvinton Florestal that was beaten to death

          4  on May 20th, was beaten to death in a shelter in

          5  Harlem, and I want to just express some appreciation

          6  to the Chair for being responsive to my request that

          7  this Committee look into this, and having looked

          8  into it, has evolved into what appears to be some

          9  very positive solutions potentially. And

         10  particularly I'm supportive of the Public Advocate's

         11  position with respect to the legislation, and I

         12  would urge the Administration to join and sign that

         13  legislation as soon as possible.

         14                 Delay could mean death. So, this is a

         15  preventative measure that we would have wanted to

         16  add before we got to this point, so I would hope

         17  that the Administration moves expeditiously and that

         18  regarding it's good to hear that there is an

         19  interest on the part in being supportive.

         20                 It seems to me the heart of what

         21  we're trying to do here is this family service

         22  teams. That seems to be the heart of the Coalition,

         23  the heart of the coordination between the two

         24  agencies, and I'm not all together clear on how that

         25  is to be implemented, and I just want to ask some
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          2  questions about them and see if there are some

          3  concerns.

          4                 Some of those questions were

          5  addressed by the Chair. Clearly, as you mentioned,

          6  Commissioner, welcome to your new job.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I look

          9  forward to working with you. We may not always agree

         10  but I'm sure we'll be productive.

         11                 Fatality is the only thing we're

         12  looking at here. Though, unfortunately, it's what

         13  triggered this.

         14                 There's levels of concern beneath

         15  fatality that I sense that you are appreciative of,

         16  and are moving, are designing this new approach to

         17  address.

         18                 What I'm concerned about is you say

         19  there are 12 people on the part of these teams?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: There will be

         21  as they are built.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: As they are

         23  built.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: From ACS.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Does that
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          2  mean 12 per shelter? There will be a team per

          3  shelter, or will this be a roving team or a borough

          4  team or a Councilmanic team, or how will these teams

          5  be working? Do you understand what I'm trying to

          6  say?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: The ACS team

          8  will be at the intake point. They will be mobile,

          9  should they need to be, and, of course, we will need

         10  to check in on families who are not at the intake

         11  point. But their focus is going to be at clearing

         12  all of those cases coming in the door.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. So, for

         14  instance, there are several shelters in a particular

         15  district, Councilmanic district, there is always

         16  intake, I assume. Let's assume in my district there

         17  are five shelters, for the sake of discussion, will

         18  there be five teams for that intake process? Will

         19  there be one team for that intake process?

         20                 If people are coming in at the same

         21  time at different shelters, in my district, for

         22  instance, how will that be addressed mechanically?

         23                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Families of five

         24  for shelters, at one site. There is one intake site

         25  for the shelter system, regardless of where the
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          2  shelter placement is.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And where is

          4  that site?

          5                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It's an EAU, the

          6  Emergency Assistance Unit in the South Bronx.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And the Family

          9  Services Team will be co-located with the Department

         10  of Homeless Services at that intake site reviewing

         11  all families who apply. So, everyone who is coming

         12  in for shelter is seen there at the point of

         13  application. And, so, that's where we'll have the

         14  ACS team on site reviewing the individual

         15  applications, making their judgment. And then in the

         16  event ongoing services are needed, those would be

         17  referred, I believe, to the community-based

         18  providers that are geographically assigned through

         19  both the DHS service system and the ACS service

         20  system.

         21                 And other community-based providers

         22  that might be the appropriate support for a family

         23  if either of our systems is not the appropriate

         24  support.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, so, it
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          2  will be at the EAU site. The community-based

          3  providers become critical in some of this, how are

          4  you determining the portfolio or the community-based

          5  providers? How are you going to determine who they

          6  are, where they are and what they provide and so

          7  forth? And are they becoming, how are they getting

          8  into this network?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes, we've

         10  actually had preventive experts on the team that's

         11  been building this, because they are in many ways,

         12  the preventive services are the critical part of

         13  this system for most of the family.

         14                 So, we will be referring families

         15  back to their home communities for preventive

         16  services, and we, as well as the DHS, now have

         17  preventive service contracts that are based in

         18  communities. So, that's how we will be doing that.

         19                 These are agencies that are expert at

         20  helping families before they get too deeply in

         21  trouble that we have to remove their kids, and who

         22  are expert at helping families reintegrate after a

         23  foster care experience.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, help me

         25  understand the community provider thing a little
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          2  better.

          3                 You refer someone to a shelter in

          4  their neighborhood so-to-speak?

          5                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Placement policy

          6  for the Department of Homeless Services is to refer

          7  a family to a shelter in the community of the

          8  youngest school-aged child, and the effort to ensure

          9  that they don't have additional education disruption

         10  beyond their homelessness.

         11                 The shelter is then the community

         12  where the family is placed and the referral would be

         13  to a community-based provider serving that area.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now is that a

         15  provider that's already contracted with you?

         16                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I think we have

         17  both. We certainly have a lot more knowledge,

         18  information and relationship with those that we

         19  contract with. So, both DHS and ACS contract with

         20  non-profit providers in specifically assigned

         21  geographic catchment areas, most typically a

         22  community board.

         23                 Beyond that, there are additional

         24  community-based providers that we will work with our

         25  other sister agencies to collaborate in order to
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          2  provide services, if, for example, employment

          3  training is what households might need, to work to

          4  refer families to community-based providers for

          5  whatever relevant services. But certainly just on

          6  this issue of child welfare, the community-based

          7  network of child preventive services that are under

          8  contract with ACS is the primary referral.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. Let me

         10  go back to the team for a second.

         11                 So, this is a 12, ultimately a

         12  12-person team; could you kind of give me an idea of

         13  what type of people, members, skills, titles,

         14  whatever? What is this team composed?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure. These

         16  are experienced CPS workers, some with master's

         17  degrees, who have experience in the field,

         18  investigating child abuse and neglect, and seeking

         19  assistance for families who need it, and in making

         20  decisions about removal when it's necessary.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Experienced

         22  CPS workers, that are working for ACS --

         23                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Twelve seems

         25  like a large team for some reason. What is the
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          2  number, what's magic about 12 instead of six or 15

          3  or whatever?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Nothing

          5  magic. We've done some estimates on clearing some

          6  cases of how many closed indicated cases we will

          7  come upon as we work with the intake system.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, it's not

          9  12 per case?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Oh, no. Not

         11  at all. We believe it could go as high as 12 CPS

         12  workers. It may not, depending on who comes in the

         13  front door.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And you

         15  anticipate this FST will start within the next few

         16  months?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's right.

         18  As the intake system changes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Before or

         20  after Christmas?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It should be

         22  before.

         23                 And, again, we're not going to have

         24  12 workers there, but we will build it starting with

         25  some of the staff, for example, who are at the EAU
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          2  now. So, that's how we'll do it. We'll do it in the

          3  near term, but it will not be fully operational

          4  until we see what the need will be.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: All right.

          6  Thank you very much.

          7                 I again want to express my

          8  appreciation to the Chair and the staff for having

          9  moved us forward in addressing this very vital

         10  issue, and I want to be optimistic or hopeful that

         11  this sounds good on paper, and it's got all the sort

         12  of FTS's and terminologies that can be convincing

         13  so-to-speak. But, I think we're going to have to see

         14  this in action, and I think to some extent it also

         15  is the matter of how soon we get it up and running.

         16  Because I don't want to be negative, but I can't

         17  quite grasp it yet, to be honest. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         19  much, Council Member Perkins. And I want to again

         20  thank you, part of why we had the June hearing,

         21  which I think was crucial to this whole process, is

         22  absolutely the strong advocacy of Council Member

         23  Perkins, and specifically the fact we had in June,

         24  as everyone remembers, the budget was just being

         25  past that time, and we were pretty much running out
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          2  of time and with his intervention we were able to

          3  get that hearing done just before it was too late,

          4  and, again, I think it helped set a time line in

          5  motion that has led to the progress here today. So,

          6  thank you, Council Member Perkins for that.

          7                 I want to welcome Council Member Jose

          8  Serrano, Jr., who we will soon be losing to higher

          9  office, and we congratulate you.

         10                 I want to thank Council Member Larry

         11  Seabrook for yielding to the Public Advocate who has

         12  another commitment, we'll get to his question

         13  immediately after hers, and we welcome questions

         14  from Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.

         15                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: I have two

         16  questions. One is a concern over the apparent lag

         17  between the Administration announcement of policy

         18  and what is real.

         19                 I understand that you've got these

         20  systems that are going into place and that they're

         21  very complicated, and I also am generally a very

         22  optimistic person. On the other hand, as recently as

         23  last week, we spoke to shelter staff who said that

         24  when they are calling, if they get their phone call

         25  answered, they are sometimes told, if they get the
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          2  phone call answered, that the information is

          3  confidential.

          4                 So, I'd like to know what steps are

          5  being taken to address this particular problem that

          6  we, in fact, have had clear evidence exists.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Advocate

          8  Gotbaum, I'm sorry I don't know who is calling whom

          9  where in order to be able to answer that. If they're

         10  calling the State Central Registry, that process is

         11  handled I think quite smoothly by the State.

         12                 If they are calling ACS, I need to

         13  know about more whom they are calling, is it the

         14  field office, is it the staff at the EAU, I don't

         15  know.

         16                 But in general terms, what we have

         17  tried to lay out for you here is a series of actions

         18  that have been taken over the past month, which are

         19  leading up to a much more robust system that will

         20  protect children who have been with families with

         21  closed indicator cases. Much of the work is now in

         22  place, but not all of it.

         23                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: I understand

         24  that, but I just would like to point out, point to

         25  your attention, that we have had these experiences
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          2  by making these calls. We probably won't give

          3  specific names but we can give you general

          4  indication of where, absolutely.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That would be

          6  fine.

          7                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: And the

          8  second question is, in the case of, I think it was

          9  Colesvinton Florestal, the maintenance staff and

         10  security staff of the shelter indicated that they

         11  had tried to get the information to, I think a

         12  social worker but I'm not entire sure, my memory may

         13  fail me at this moment, but my question is, are you

         14  going to also train the maintenance and security

         15  staff of the shelter so that they, too, are aware of

         16  what's available and what they could do? I don't

         17  know which agency.

         18                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Just on that

         19  detail, that was a maintenance worker who made an

         20  observation and noted it but did not pass it along

         21  until tragically after the fatality occurred, and so

         22  just to clarify on that information, it was not

         23  external to the shelter system that the information

         24  was made, was collected.

         25                 The training is for the social
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          2  service staff, and as mandated reporters still

          3  receive mandated reporter training. This will happen

          4  in the context of shelter facilities where everybody

          5  from the front security to the janitors, to the

          6  folks that provide food services, are in a very

          7  caring and supportive environment, and by virtue of

          8  the higher level of mandated reporter training and

          9  the information will be enhanced through the

         10  additional postings that will result through the

         11  legislation being reviewed today, it will increase I

         12  think everybody's awareness and sensitivity.

         13                 At the same time, we do not expect

         14  janitors and security staff, because they are not

         15  mandated reporters, and we do not expect of them the

         16  same level of understanding of family dynamics as

         17  certified social work staff and casework staff.

         18                 They do have, they are in an

         19  environment that is a caring environment for

         20  families in need, and they share the same

         21  responsibility that any one of us as citizens of the

         22  City have, to report issues of abuse and neglect

         23  that they come across in those facilities.

         24                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Thank you.

         25                 And just one last question,
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          2  Commissioner. Thank you for saying that you agree

          3  with our legislation, and I hope that this will be

          4  helpful and that we can work on this together to

          5  ensure that the signage is up and that people get

          6  the information.

          7                 One piece of information that has

          8  come to us lately, though, that I just wanted to ask

          9  you about is that there is a lack of cribs available

         10  to some families in the units; is this something you

         11  know about?

         12                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Any time that we

         13  recently received information about a lack of cribs,

         14  we've followed up and found that not to be the case.

         15                 I think the important message that we

         16  need to confirm is that individuals who know, that

         17  any time there is information brought to anyone's

         18  attention, that immediately that same moment should

         19  go back to the shelter facility, you know, shouldn't

         20  be saved for any later follow-up. We want to make

         21  sure that if families know that if they need a crib,

         22  they can get it. Shelters have cribs on site in

         23  storage and they routinely replace the cribs as

         24  needed, so there is every family in need of a crib

         25  upon placement. What we do when we place a family
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          2  into a unit is ensure that the crib is available,

          3  that there's a child that needs one.

          4                 And, so, that happens at the point of

          5  placement, and what we always want to assure is if a

          6  crib breaks, that that information goes straight

          7  back to the shelters, someone at that facility that

          8  needs to address that, that's not something that

          9  should wait sort of trailing through bureaucracy to

         10  get that information for the shelter to address.

         11                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: So we should

         12  let you know where and when we hear?

         13                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Well, absolutely

         14  let me know as a redundancy.

         15                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Right.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The first thing

         17  to do is to call that shelter director and say, you

         18  know, Ms. Jones in Room 2B does not have a crib and

         19  she needs one now. That is not something to work

         20  through a bigger --

         21                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Right.

         22                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: You know, that's

         23  the shelter director's job.

         24                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Okay, thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Advocate

          3  Gotbaum?

          4                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Yes.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I just want

          6  to tag on a couple of things.

          7                 First, ACS is of the same view as DHS

          8  about your proposed legislation, that there are

          9  things that might need to be worked on, but it seems

         10  like a solid piece of legislation that we like to

         11  support.

         12                 Secondly, I have to say I'm somewhat

         13  flumixed by your early comments. I have to tell you

         14  I have not received personally any such letter from

         15  you. That doesn't mean that it didn't get into the

         16  organization and somehow got lost and I will

         17  certainly look to that. And I would be more than

         18  happy to meet with you at any time to discuss these

         19  very, very important issues.

         20                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Thank you. I

         21  will give you a copy.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Secondly, I

         23  was somewhat concerned about your comment that we

         24  last month said that this system was completely in

         25  place. I don't know what that referred to. The only
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          2  thing I can think of within the past month, we did

          3  express public concern about the recent rise in the

          4  number of child deaths generally, and that we needed

          5  to figure out as a community and ACS needed to

          6  figure out what we needed to do about that.

          7                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: I think it

          8  was on October 7th that you issued a press statement

          9  saying that the six initiatives of sharing the staff

         10  information, the information sharing, staff

         11  development, distribution of child health materials,

         12  "these six measures announced last summer have been

         13  implemented." This is on October 7th on a press

         14  release from your office.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's

         16  correct. Those are the first six steps in this that

         17  we spoke to earlier today. Nothing about everything

         18  being completely in place was said at that time.

         19                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Well, except

         20  then we called and we found out that workers, and

         21  we'll tell you generally where they came from, were

         22  being told, one, that the information was

         23  confidential, they couldn't get it, and two, if they

         24  got answered at all.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I also want
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          2  to say, and I probably shouldn't say this, but I

          3  just want to say that I didn't come here to New York

          4  City to take up a high falutin job running a very

          5  large organization. I came here to protect the

          6  children and strengthen the families of New York

          7  City, and that's what I care about most, and I urge

          8  you to work, to make sure that I know what you know

          9  so that I can do my job.

         10                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Absolutely.

         11  That's why I made the comment in the beginning about

         12  not getting a response from the Commissioner. And so

         13  we will start over. I'll give you the copy of the

         14  letter that we sent you on July 21st and let's begin

         15  from there. Thank you.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you my

         17  colleagues in the City Council.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         19  Public Advocate. Thank you, again, for the

         20  legislation you've introduced.

         21                 I want to thank the patient Larry

         22  Seabrook and welcome his questions and then I have a

         23  few final questions.

         24                 Larry Seabrook.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 Good morning, Commissioners. I have a

          4  couple of questions for the both, and they're not

          5  long questions, I guess they'll be short answers.

          6                 This video that Councilwoman Brewer

          7  talked about, is this video available right now with

          8  the equipment at every shelter that the City is

          9  responsible now with children? Is this equipment and

         10  video ready to go right now?

         11                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I believe so. I

         12  can confirm whether there has been any facility that

         13  has not yet received it, and I believe in fact that

         14  it's further than that, that clients have already

         15  viewed the video for the most part. There may be

         16  clients who did not attend their case meeting, when

         17  the video is being shown, so there certainly will be

         18  exceptions, so it's further than just providing it

         19  and putting a machine with a video in a room. We're

         20  actually working through individual clients one by

         21  one to make sure they view the video.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So the

         23  director has that responsibility of providing that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: That's correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And if we
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          2  went to a shelter today all would have the video and

          3  the --

          4                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: As I said, I will

          5  confirm to see if there is anyone who is not.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay. All

          7  right.

          8                 And just a question that for the both

          9  of you, with the Mayor's response to the budgetary

         10  crisis in this City, and the cuts that's proposed,

         11  and Commissioner Mattingly, you indicated that

         12  you're putting together this team and this

         13  professional experts, these presenters, et cetera,

         14  what is the cost, the additional cost that it's

         15  going to be, budgetary, that you have allocated for

         16  this task to make this happen, how much money is

         17  going to be projected to be spent, and what type of

         18  increase? And if there is a budgetary cut that's

         19  mandated, how would it affect your ability to do

         20  this job to eliminate these child deaths that's on

         21  the rise in this City?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Thank you. A

         23  couple of very important questions. Let me just say

         24  that up until now, well, I can't speak about up

         25  until now, but certainly into the future, our CPS
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          2  workers on the front line, I'm going to do

          3  everything that I possibly can to see to it that we

          4  have enough of them and that their caseloads are

          5  doable.

          6                 These workers that we're talking

          7  about are CPS workers, so when we assign two at a

          8  time perhaps, these workers to this new piece of

          9  work, we're going to have to backfill those

         10  positions and it is fully my intention to do so.

         11                 We're going to need to find resources

         12  within the organization and within the budget, but

         13  primarily we're going to need to find those lines so

         14  that we can make sure that we don't move someone

         15  into one job at the same time that their caseload

         16  becomes open somewhere else, and that's my

         17  commitment, to make sure that that happens.

         18                 One of the reasons, too, why we want

         19  to do it a bit at a time so that we can planfully

         20  make the move.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But the

         22  question again is, how do you do that when there is

         23  a cry for fiscal constraints, budget cuts, and then

         24  there is a cry for a need to deal with this reality

         25  of death?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It's going to

          3  be difficult, but I believe it can be done within

          4  our $2.1 billion budget.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay.

          6                 Commissioner Gibbs, I'm getting a

          7  shelter, and you raise the issue about DHS, ACS,

          8  these contracts for these services. This proposed

          9  shelter in the Northeast Bronx, what contracts,

         10  private contracts or whatever, have been established

         11  in that community district to name them, and tell us

         12  where they are available for people who will be

         13  housed in this shelter in the Northeast Bronx?

         14                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The shelter

         15  contract is with Homes for the Homeless, which will

         16  provide contracted social services on site in the

         17  facility regarding the housing support needs for

         18  families who are homeless and who will reside in

         19  that facility. They also will bring into that

         20  facility related social service supports, child

         21  care, employment training, services, that will

         22  support the individual's needs to look further than

         23  just housing, but also to support their incomes and

         24  educational needs.

         25                 And beyond that they will refer to
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          2  other organizations that serve at-risk families in

          3  the communities to the extent that that's required.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Have you

          5  identified any of those services that's provided

          6  within the community that's outside of what homeless

          7  services is going to provide at the facilities, what

          8  have your agency identified those particular groups

          9  that would provide additional service?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: That is a task

         11  that we assigned to our shelter provider to

         12  establish themselves the relationships with the

         13  local providers in the communities, many of whom

         14  will already be serving these families as needy

         15  families from those communities.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Have they

         17  identified those to you now?

         18                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: That was a

         19  responsibility of their proposals. The facility is

         20  not yet functioning, and once it's open, they'll

         21  establish those relationships more concretely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Is this

         23  information public, that the public could actually

         24  see who they have identified?

         25                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It's within the
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          2  content and it's a component of the request for

          3  proposals that they identify relationships with

          4  other organizations that they have.

          5                 I don't know exactly who they

          6  identified in their proposal.  It's within the

          7  content of the proposal that's on registration with

          8  the Comptroller's Office.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I'm saying

         10  so this is a public document that we could actually

         11  see and be provided to us?

         12                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I believe the RPF

         13  itself is part of the registered contract. It gets

         14  attached as a document that attaches to the contract

         15  and is on record in the Comptroller's Office.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay. Thank

         17  you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         19  much, Council Member.

         20                 A few last questions for the

         21  Commissioners.

         22                 I want to go back to just sort of the

         23  process at the point of intake and just ask a

         24  clarifying question. Literally every family, once

         25  you're up and running hopefully within a matter of
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          2  weeks, every single family arrives at the EAU gets a

          3  screen for opened or closed ACS cases; is that a

          4  true statement?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: It will be,

          6  yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: It will be.

          8                 And if there is not an open or a

          9  closed case, what will be the way that an ACS worker

         10  could notice any other information that could

         11  suggest a need for further investigation?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: That's going

         13  to be primarily the responsibility of the DHS staff

         14  who has to be attuned to risk assessment issues, and

         15  whom we are helping to train. So, that's got to be

         16  primarily their responsibility, although they can

         17  always draw us in and talk further about the risk

         18  that they're concerned about.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I want to be

         20  the devil's advocate in terms of rigor here.

         21  Obviously if a family arrives where there's no

         22  indication of any problem and there's no history, we

         23  understand you have other important work to do, but

         24  if a family arrives and there's something there, the

         25  stress of the moment, you know, there's any kind of
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          2  anger being displayed toward the children, whatever

          3  it may be, I'm trying to understand what's the

          4  trigger. I'd like to know that DHS workers will be

          5  as conservative, if you will, as possible, in terms

          6  of bringing anything to the attention of ACS workers

          7  that might be an indicator and let the experts pass

          8  judgment; so how are you going to get folks to be as

          9  quick on the jump as possible in those cases?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Well, this is

         11  already the practice at the EAU whereas referrals by

         12  DHS employees to the ACS workers on site now

         13  includes two categories, the open indicated cases,

         14  plus any case where there is a concern about abuse

         15  and neglect, regardless of whether there is any

         16  current history or current active case.

         17                 I believe when the family services

         18  team is added to the function, it's going to improve

         19  the overall understanding of every worker, and it's

         20  just going to elevate their knowledge, their

         21  awareness, their sensitivity, and make them more

         22  fully aware of the resources that are available to

         23  assist in the event that they identify those issues.

         24                 So, it's already the practice, and I

         25  think the consultation process itself that will be
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          2  part of the routine work practice. It's going to

          3  have an educating effect on all of the workers who

          4  are present.

          5                 Again, in the philosophy of a

          6  supportive service environment where families feel

          7  that they can approach the City for services at a

          8  time of need and appropriate services will be

          9  offered.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: No, I

         11  appreciate that and I certainly agree with you that

         12  the presence of ACS in a more profound way will

         13  help. So, I guess, again, I think we are responding

         14  to tragedies, we are responding to numbers beyond

         15  just these two most recent tragedies, so let me ask

         16  it this way: If a family arrived, no previous case,

         17  no open case, but let me take an obvious example,

         18  there's bruises on, multiple bruises on one of the

         19  children's arms, again, I believe many of our

         20  caseworkers are conscientious. I also believe

         21  they're overworked and they have a lot of stress of

         22  their own. What's the trigger? I'd like there to be

         23  a conservative trigger to make sure that that ACS

         24  consultation occurs; how close, literally,

         25  physically how close are the ACS workers, how easy
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          2  it is to access them?

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It's a small

          4  facility.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And they're right

          7  on the same hallway, they sit right next to the HRA

          8  diversion staff, and which is right next to the

          9  intake window. So they're all in close proximity to

         10  each other.

         11                 They're mandated reporters. They deal

         12  with families each and every day. They are expert in

         13  family dynamics and they have the obligation that

         14  they are well aware of to make those referrals when

         15  it's necessary.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And are

         17  supervisors and trainers essentially saying err on

         18  the side of caution, and if you're not sure, go to

         19  the ACS folks? Is that going to be the message?

         20                 Because, again, I presume the

         21  consultation doesn't in any way impinge on the right

         22  to the families or necessarily slow down their

         23  process in any way.

         24                 I just think it would be always

         25  helpful for people to say when in doubt, consult
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          2  with the ACS personnel on site.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I will defer, and

          4  we do defer to ACS in exactly how to express it.

          5  Because err on the side of caution can also create a

          6  flood of child removals into foster care

          7  unnecessarily.

          8                 What you want to, and ACS is very

          9  expert on this, is providing us the training in

         10  order to guide the appropriate decision-making, but

         11  we want to do it to ensure child safety.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I think we're

         13  missing each other. I'm talking about the first

         14  intake. I'm not talking about the more radical

         15  situation where something important has to occur in

         16  terms of an action. I'm saying if at the first

         17  intake, if ACS is not present for every intake with

         18  a family coming in, I wish they were in a perfect

         19  world, but I understand what you're saying, and you

         20  have a situation that's not an open case or a closed

         21  case, but there are some serious signs, I just want

         22  to make sure that your workers always take the time

         23  to go to his workers and talk about it.

         24                 I'm not suggesting anything happen

         25  beyond what is warranted but I sure would be worried
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          2  if that wasn't the instinct.

          3                 You know, we go to all this trouble

          4  to have teams on site, and that's wonderful. No

          5  matter how well trained your folks are, their work

          6  is about homelessness, his work is about children,

          7  I'm just hoping that if there's any kind of signs,

          8  people sort of call a time out, enough to just get

          9  the advice, and if necessary, of course for the ACS

         10  folks to come in and ask some questions of their

         11  own. Is that the concept?

         12                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It's the content

         13  and it's the intent. It's clearly the intent of this

         14  initiative.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Commissioner.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes, I think

         17  it's a very important question because you don't

         18  want ACS staff who are simply saying no if it

         19  doesn't reach this absolute point, we don't need to

         20  talk, we should talk, we should always talk, it

         21  can't hurt to talk and figure out what steps might

         22  need to be taken even with a preventive referral

         23  right away, if it doesn't reach the level of abuse

         24  or neglect. And I think you make a good point that

         25  we should work on with our staff about.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. No,

          3  I'm a veteran of both municipal and federal

          4  executive branches, and I'm always astounded at how

          5  hard it is to get people to understand each other's

          6  perspectives and share information as to the

          7  challenge we all face. I think you're doing some

          8  important work to try and overcome that, but I think

          9  that people almost have to know at the line level

         10  that they will be rewarded for consultation, not

         11  discouraged because it takes more time or whatever

         12  it may be.

         13                 A couple other quick points. On the

         14  relationship of the computer matching system,

         15  there's a biweekly system and a monthly system. I

         16  guess the biweekly refers to the open cases and the

         17  monthly to the closed, I'm just worried that because

         18  that's happening on sort of a longer loop that how

         19  is it going to be clear, a family comes in, there's

         20  an immediate screen looking for that information,

         21  how are we going to be sure that information is up

         22  to date enough, you know, we could have caught

         23  something had it been updated more often, for

         24  example?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm finding,
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          2  to my chagrin, this stuff is all really complicated.

          3  But in this case it's confusing, what we've been

          4  talking about is somewhat confusing.

          5                 What we're doing now are these data

          6  matches on open investigating, open investigation,

          7  so that those cases that may be open are caught

          8  through RDIT at the front door. There are a set of

          9  investigations ongoing that we need to catch. We

         10  will have a system in place in the not too distant

         11  future to automatically do that. Right now we're

         12  doing it by looking periodically at matching.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Just to be

         14  clear, so I walk in in, I'm going to say a month,

         15  just to pull a number out of thin air, in a month

         16  this is up and running, I walk into EAU, I have a

         17  closed case from five years ago, are you saying that

         18  the technology of the systems you have in place

         19  today will catch that?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And I have an

         22  open case, same person now, I have an open case from

         23  one month ago, will the system catch that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.
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          2                 People who are already processed and

          3  in shelter, we've talked a lot today about the

          4  starting point in the system, how are we going to go

          5  back, and maybe you've answered this, but I didn't

          6  hear it clearly enough, how are we going to go back

          7  into the existing population in the shelter and

          8  screen families anew for open and closed cases and

          9  any other indicators?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: This is the

         11  routine data match of the system every two weeks for

         12  cases, and so they -- every shelter will not have

         13  connections which has the real time live data, but

         14  they will be provided with the results of the data

         15  match on, I believe it's either biweekly or monthly

         16  basis.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And who is

         18  responsible for that?

         19                 Who is responsible for providing it

         20  to each shelter?

         21                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The match happens

         22  between our two agencies, and I pass it onto the

         23  shelter.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So you're a

         25  chain of command in a sense? The folks that you fund
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          2  to do this work get the information from you so

          3  there's an accountability?

          4                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Correct. And that

          5  has been happening since, the first match happened

          6  in July, and the first data share occurred in

          7  September. So, that's already in place.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And to the

          9  extent you have found opened and closed ACS cases

         10  for families currently in shelter.

         11                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: They're open

         12  cases.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. What is

         14  the time line for integrating closed cases as well?

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Closed case

         16  review will occur at intake.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm saying for

         18  families -- I mean, you've got how many children

         19  right now in shelter?

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Fifteen-thousand.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, you've got

         22  15,000 children. Are we also proceeding to do a

         23  closed case review for those families?

         24                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Could I ask why
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          2  not?

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The shelters have

          4  routine daily contact with the families and would be

          5  the source of information if there is any concern

          6  about the ongoing safety of the children.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I respect that,

          8  but I guess my question is, wouldn't they benefit

          9  from knowing if there was a closed case situation,

         10  since we've seen such an unfortunate correlation

         11  between closed case situations and negative

         12  outcomes?

         13                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Let us take a

         14  look at it. We have not contemplated reviewing, the

         15  incidents of closed cases for families currently in

         16  shelter. We can take a look at it. I don't know

         17  whether it makes sense, but why don't we get a sense

         18  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'd appreciate

         20  that.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'd be happy

         22  to do it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That would be

         24  helpful. And for the personnel in the shelters who

         25  do have that daily contact, I assume that includes
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          2  social workers, for example, based in the shelters?

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: They're

          4  caseworkers, not always certified social workers.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Caseworkers.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do those case

          8  workers, as a matter of current practice, have

          9  contact with ACS when they think there might be a

         10  problem?

         11                 I'm not saying something gets

         12  reported to the State Registry, maybe something

         13  required preventative help. Is there an ongoing

         14  protocol for them to connect with ACS personnel?

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Training in their

         16  mandated reporter responsibilities, advise them

         17  about when to call the State Central Registry, which

         18  is the appropriate forum of alerting of a case of

         19  abuse and neglect, a concern of abuse and neglect.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: If it's

         21  something short of a concern of abuse is already

         22  underway, but a sense that there might be coming

         23  problems, is there a place at ACS they can turn to

         24  for assistance, advice, analysis of the situation;

         25  is that part of the current structure?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Not

          3  typically, depending on where we're talking about,

          4  but workers co-located certainly could and should be

          5  doing that, and that's one of the issues raised

          6  earlier, that we ought to make sure are being dealt

          7  with.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, again, I

          9  think both of you have brought a very positive

         10  spirit and an innovative spirit to this. I think

         11  maybe that is the next frontier to consider here,

         12  both getting closed case information into the

         13  shelters for current families, and improving the

         14  mechanism by which they can communicate with ACS so

         15  it's less up to the individual social worker or

         16  individual chain of command that an outpost and more

         17  related to what you're doing centrally.

         18                 And I would also say that I think so

         19  much of this we will all benefit, the Committee will

         20  benefit, the public will benefit, if you can

         21  announce the steps along the way, for example, when

         22  you are fully up and running with the new structure.

         23                 I think people would appreciate that

         24  being made something public so we have the

         25  confidence of that piece is moving along.
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          2                 I think I had one more question.

          3                 Yes, and in terms of training, I just

          4  want to make sure I understand, for shelter

          5  providers, what do you anticipate now being the

          6  training process for their workers? In other words,

          7  is ACS now going to have a more prominent role in

          8  training the front line workers who work in those

          9  shelters to be aware of all of this. Not just at

         10  EAU, but in the shelters themselves?

         11                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Well, the ACS

         12  staff that provides the mandated reporter training

         13  have been doing that, refreshing that training,

         14  throughout the shelter system, and it had not

         15  occurred in over a year, and so we have now

         16  reinstituted it, but also we've increased the

         17  frequency of it, and so everybody who is currently

         18  an employee is receiving that training, for a

         19  majority of them it's a retraining, and we're going

         20  to be reinstituting a more frequent training to

         21  that, as new staff is added, that they are within

         22  the first quarter of their employment that they

         23  receive the training.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

         25  Brewer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just have a

          3  question for, maybe this doesn't make sense for

          4  confidentiality reasons, because we have had a

          5  hearing in the Technology Committee on the

          6  integrated human services network and there are many

          7  confidentiality issues, but real time viewing for

          8  this database, is that something that's anticipated

          9  for the contracted agencies or not?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It's a

         11  confidential database that even service providers of

         12  other City agencies cannot have access to, unless

         13  there is a very clear and specific need for an

         14  individual to look into the system and you need

         15  specific authorization from ACS for that. And, so,

         16  the confidentiality rules really demand that

         17  confidential nature be protected. So in that case

         18  the confidentiality is protected because it's an ACS

         19  worker who has access to the system at the intake

         20  point.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. And then

         22  the notion that Bill DeBlasio was talking about, for

         23  getting information, which I guess goes to you and

         24  then you go out to the shelter director in terms of

         25  cases, so that will continue in that mode, in other
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          2  words, so then nobody can look at it in a real time

          3  basis?

          4                 I mean, I understand why, I'm just

          5  trying to understand what the long-term schedule

          6  looks like. The confidentiality is real.

          7                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: A monthly

          8  refreshing of that data, so that in the shelter

          9  facilities they may be unaware, for instance, that

         10  the Department of Education called in a report

         11  regarding a concern in a particular household. This

         12  will provide the information to them at the shelter

         13  facility that a client in their care is now the

         14  subject of an abuse and neglect referral.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         16                 How do the contracted agencies, if a

         17  family is obviously in a Tier II, how do they tell

         18  the agencies about issues? Do they do that on line,

         19  or is that a phone call? Just out of curiosity?

         20                 In other words, I'm just trying to

         21  think of what this sharing of information looks like

         22  from the contracted agencies to the --

         23                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It's a hard copy

         24  report.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's a hard
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          2  copy report, okay.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And that's how

          5  it's going to stay, it sounds like.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Yes.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I'm sure

          8  we'll be talking about this in the future, but one

          9  of the complexities for us is that the connection

         10  system, which is the basic information system, and

         11  child protection is a State system.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. I'm

         13  very aware of that. You have a friend up there,

         14  whatever his name is, who is the guy. Is it Dennis?

         15  There is somebody who is there who Gino Menchini

         16  likes, so that helps.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Last question.

         19  Thank you, Council Member Brewer.

         20                 Last question. Just on this last

         21  point of the interrelationship between your two

         22  agencies and the actual shelter providers. This is a

         23  layman's question. I would assume that a very, very

         24  complex question for anyone who does this work is

         25  when to pick up the phone to the State Central
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          2  Registry.

          3                 And let me just say, I think we've

          4  said it at different hearings, let me say it to both

          5  of you again, you're doing extraordinarily difficult

          6  work, and you're doing it well, and as touch as our

          7  questions may be, no one fails to miss the fact

          8  that, you know, it's not easy, anything that you're

          9  doing.

         10                 I worry sometimes that someone may

         11  hesitate before picking up that phone, because in a

         12  sense it's the initiation of a rather serious

         13  action. And, again, that's why I'm wondering, is

         14  there something more subtle, is there something more

         15  intermediate that would help?

         16                 I think what you're doing in the EAU

         17  is tremendous, because you're now giving the front

         18  line worker options. Somewhere between doing nothing

         19  and going nuclear, if you will, and going to the

         20  central registry, you're now giving them a series of

         21  much more subtle options, and people they can turn

         22  to and advice they can get, and ways of planning

         23  preventative options, whatever it may be. The

         24  shelter providers, I worry, are that much farther

         25  removed. They're not City employees, per se. And
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          2  they --

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I actually think

          4  they're not that much further removed. There are

          5  employees of community-based non-profit

          6  organizations that often times are themselves child

          7  welfare preventive or foster care providers, and

          8  they're a part of a very broad and strong network of

          9  non-profit organizations that we benefit from in the

         10  City, and their missions, their individual

         11  organizational missions, are to protect vulnerable

         12  children and families.

         13                 So, I think their daily practice,

         14  their commitment, their mission is in this work.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes, no one

         16  doubts that, to say the least. And I think everyone

         17  on this Committee believes in community-based

         18  solutions, so that goes without saying. I would

         19  argue back to you that you have a unified system of

         20  sending a message to your workers and of creating an

         21  expectation, you as an agency, the City as a whole,

         22  when you get down to the non-profit level there's

         23  always a certain amount of difference from one to

         24  the other, and my fear again is, is there a gap, is

         25  there a gap because you have options that go from
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          2  perhaps too non-invasive, if you will, too simple,

          3  too intense, meaning call in the registry? And I

          4  guess I'm just asking this question, is there a

          5  possibility that those agencies, and particularly

          6  front-line workers, need a place to turn to get the

          7  same kind of advice that the EAU worker now will be

          8  able to get?

          9                 And I'm just raising that again

         10  because I didn't really fully understand the

         11  previous answer. Is that something we should

         12  consider? If literally even a hot line to call an

         13  ACS supervisor and get advice or something, is that

         14  something worth considering?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I think the

         16  direction to go is to make sure that people in

         17  community agencies know that they can take a family

         18  to a preventive agency right now and get them

         19  additional help, if they haven't crossed that

         20  boundary. I think it's a mistake in the longrun to

         21  lower that barrier, because you'll get too involved

         22  with too many cases that you don't belong in, and

         23  those resources here in New York City, while they're

         24  very stretched, they're out there in ways that you

         25  don't find in many communities. And I think the
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          2  linkage to preventive agencies is the key to

          3  answering that conundrum.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And as part of

          5  your ongoing training, I assume that's reemphasized

          6  at all times, that that is an option in the first

          7  instance for the shelter providers to immediately

          8  connect with the most available local option?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. We

         11  appreciate very much your testimony. We appreciate

         12  the actions you have taken. As I said, we want to be

         13  in regular touch about the progress of those

         14  actions. We appreciate any announcements or any

         15  updates from you.

         16                 We will be sending you a follow-up

         17  letter on some of the questions raised today so we

         18  can keep the dialogue going.

         19                 But thank you for the steps you've

         20  taken, and we will continue to work together.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: The meeting of

         24  the General Welfare Committee is adjourned.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 12:20 p.m.)
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